Dan Bernal President

Edward A. Chow, M.D. Commissioner

Susan Belinda Christian, J.D. Commissioner

Cecilia Chung Commissioner

Suzanne Giraudo ED.D Commissioner

Laurie Green, M.D. Commissioner

Tessie M. Guillermo Commissioner

HEALTH COMMISSION CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

London N. Breed Mayor Department of Public Health



Grant Colfax, MD
Director of Health
Mark Morewitz, M.S.W.
Executive Secretary

TEL (415) 554-2666 FAX (415) 554-2665

Web Site: http://www.sfdph.org

MINUTES

<u>HEALTH COMMISSION MEETING</u>

Tuesday August 4, 2020 3:00 p.m.

Remote Meeting via Webex Event

1) CALL TO ORDER

Present: Commissioner Dan Bernal President

Commissioner Edward A. Chow M.D.

Commissioner Susan Belinda Christian, J.D.

Commissioner Cecilia Chung

Commissioner Suzanne Giraudo, Ph.D Commissioner Laurie Green, MD Commissioner Tessie Guillermo

The meeting was called to order at 3:09pm.

2) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE HEALTH COMMISSION MEETING OF JULY 21, 2020

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Bernal made the following comments:

At its July 21st meeting, the Health Commission approved the Health Equity resolution Declaring Anti-Black Racism a Human Rights and Public Health Crisis in San Francisco. The Health Commission resolution was based on a resolution approved by the Human Rights Commission on June 25th of this year, with the addition of resolved statements that were tailored to public health-related outcomes specific to the Department of Public Health.

As Commission President and on behalf of my fellow Commissioners, I would like to acknowledge the critical work of the Human Rights Commissioners and staff along with members of the community group MegaBlackSF in developing a resolution of the same name which was approved by the Human Rights Commission on June 25.

While the Commission is very proud to have passed this resolution which contains significant measurable outcomes for the Department of Public Health to achieve in health equity and specifically to combat anti-Black racism, it was apparent during the discussion of the item that there were issues with respect to the development of the resolution and the process by which the Commission approached the discussion of this item.

Last week, the Health Commission Secretary and staff from the Department of Public Health and the Human Rights Commission met to resolve the issues mentioned during the meeting. We are committed to develop a process and protocols for our continued work together to address anti-Black racism and other crises affecting communities in San Francisco, and for our Commissions' consideration and discussion of these critical and complex issues. I speak on behalf of my fellow Commissioners in saying that Health Commission will continue to address anti-Black racism and advance other health equity issues in our communities and in our workplaces throughout the year at our meetings and consideration of future resolutions.

During this COVID-19 pandemic, DPH resources are stretched thin and everyone is doing their best to conduct all necessary work. We again acknowledge that we can do better and commit to working collaboratively with our colleagues at the Human Rights Commission on developing a strong process moving forward.

Action Taken: The Health Commission unanimously approved the Health Commission July 21, 2020 meeting minutes.

3) Grant Colfax, Director of Health, gave the report, which can be viewed at: http://www.sfdph.org/dph/comupg/aboutdph/insideDept/dirRpts/default.asp

Mayor London Breed unveils City budget with investments in racial equity, homelessness services, mental health, and COVID-19 response

On July 31, Mayor London N. Breed today announced her budget proposal for Fiscal Years (FY) 2020-21 and 2021-22, which includes new investments to prioritize racial equity and reinvest in the African-American community, continue making progress on homelessness and behavioral health, and maintain the City's response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The budget proposal makes these important investments while also balancing the two-year \$1.5 billion deficit with a responsible use of reserves, preserving jobs and with minimal impact to City services. The annual \$13.7 billion budget for FY 2020-21 and \$12.6 billion budget for FY 2021-22 is the culmination of months of collaborative work with elected officials, City departments, and community organizations, which was made challenging this year due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Mayor Breed's proposed budget does not include any layoffs of permanent City staff, maintains City services with minimal impacts, and closes the approximately \$1.5 billion General Fund deficit through a combination of revenue and expenditure solutions. However, the Mayor's budget as currently proposed is contingent in part upon revenue from the consensus Business Tax Reform measure, which will be on the November 2020 ballot. Additionally, the budget assumes that the City and its labor unions will reach an agreement to defer scheduled wage increases over the two-year budget period.

Homelessness and Mental Health

To continue to address the homelessness crisis and help people suffering from mental illness and substance use disorders, Mayor Breed's proposed budget includes funding to maintain investments in behavioral health beds, rental assistance and subsidy programs, and other critical mental health and homelessness programming. The proposed budget also makes new investments to pilot a new crisis response model and seeds funding for the Office of Coordinated Care in the Department of Public Health.

Mental Health

The Mayor's proposed budget supports the implementation of the first phase of Mental Health SF, a comprehensive overhaul of San Francisco's mental health system. Notably, the budget will fund the creation of an Office of Coordinated Care within the Department of Public Health, pilot a non-law enforcement Crisis

Response Team for engaging people on the street experiencing mental health or substance use-related crises, and increase the City's capacity for mental health and substance use treatment beds.

These investments would be supported by approximately \$66.5 million over two years, should the Business Tax Reform measure pass in November. Mayor Breed's budget includes \$5 million from the General Fund to accelerate the implementation of the Office of Coordinated Care and the Crisis Response Team, so that work can begin regardless of the outcome of the November 2020 ballot measure.

COVID-19 Ongoing Response and Recovery

Mayor Breed's proposed budget includes funding to ensure the City is able to continue its comprehensive, data-driven, and public health-focused response to the ongoing health threats and economic challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic. In total, the Mayor's proposed budget allocates \$446.1 million to ensure the City has the financial resources to meet the citywide priorities set forth by the COVID-19 Command Center, the centralized emergency operations center coordinating the response across City departments. The Mayor's budget assumes the City's General Fund will support \$93 million of that total amount, and that the remaining amount will be covered through a combination of FEMA reimbursement and funding from the CARES Act.

This funding will be directed to three main categories: health and human services; housing and shelter; and emergency communications and coordination. The Mayor's budget ensures there is adequate funding for COVID-19 testing, personal protective equipment, expanded capacity at hospitals and skilled nursing facilities, outbreak management, and contact tracing, among other expenses. Throughout COVID-19, addressing food insecurity has remained one of Mayor Breed's and the City's top priorities. The Mayor's proposed budget includes \$45.7 million in new expenditures for food programs. Lastly, the budget includes investments to address the needs of San Francisco's unsheltered residents in the COVID-19 environment with shelter, food, and medical care.

Community based organizations have been an integral part of the City's ongoing response to COVID-19. Mayor Breed's proposed budget includes funding to ensure that community partners can continue to work with the City to provide community-based and multi-lingual outreach and education during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Budget Timeline

In order to allow the City to be responsive to the COVID-19 emergency and to ensure sufficient time to understand the full economic impacts, the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors agreed to an updated schedule for the FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 budget process which extended the process by two months. After originally releasing budget instructions for the upcoming two-year budget in December 2019, the Mayor reissued instructions to departments in May 2020 to reflect the revised budget shortfall. Departments were instructed to submit new budget proposals to aid the Mayor in developing a balanced budget in June and July. Following Mayor Breed's introduction of the proposed budget, it will now go to the Budget and Finance Committee and the full Board of Supervisors, after which it will go to the Mayor for her signature and final adoption by October 1, 2020.

San Francisco announces increase in testing capacity and additional neighborhood sites

Today, there are over 6,900 San Francisco residents with confirmed cases of COVID-19. And, sadly, a total of 61 San Franciscans have died. The San Francisco Department of Public Health (DPH) sends our condolences to their loved ones.

The key indicators of COVID-19 activity in San Francisco show that a surge of cases and hospitalizations is under way, and it must be brought under control before reopening can continue. As a result, the City is extending the pause on the reopening that began on June 29.

On July 22, Mayor London N. Breed today announced new strategies for COVID-19 testing prioritization and availability to address the surge in COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations in San Francisco. San Francisco's public COVID-19 testing program will focus on people who have symptoms consistent with the virus, close contacts of confirmed cases, and people prioritized by the Department of Public Health such as those impacted by an outbreak.

In addition, San Francisco's public COVID-19 testing program will continue to serve first responders, activated Disaster Service Workers, people who must leave their homes to work in San Francisco, people without health insurance, and communities disproportionately impacted by this global pandemic. People with private health insurance should continue to request tests from their health care providers.

To support this effort, the CityTestSF site at the Embarcadero will add 400 new appointments per day to ensure that first responders, including City Disaster Service Workers, have access to testing. Additionally, two new mobile testing sites that can each conduct up to 250 tests per day will be added to the City's current testing assets, and will be deployed in neighborhoods disproportionately affected by the pandemic. The placement of these new sites will be determined in consultation with community members. A new long-term test site also will be added in the southeastern part of the City, starting with approximately 500 more tests per day for individuals most in need of testing.

Consistent prioritization of testing in congregate settings such as skilled nursing facilities has greatly contributed to San Francisco's achievement of a fivefold lower death rate than those in comparable counties. San Francisco has consistently exceeded its target of conducting 1,800 tests daily, reaching an average of 3,212 daily tests this week.

Next Steps for COVID-19 Testing Improvements in San Francisco:

- Issued a Health Order requiring private health care providers to expand testing services
- Reassess existing testing assets and revise testing priorities
- Expand community testing to locations that show recent increases in transmission
- Expand testing for priority populations in areas with less access to testing

San Francisco establishes continuing care site to increase hospital capacity in the COVID-19 surge

On July 30, San Francisco Director of Health Dr. Grant Colfax and District 2 Supervisor Catherine Stefani announced a significant step in bolstering the City's preparedness for the continuing surge in COVID-19 cases that has put more people in the hospital than at any time in the pandemic so far.

A facility in the Presidio will soon become San Francisco's first continuing care site for non-COVID-19 patients. Designed for those who need short-term medical observation or support, but not close monitoring or intensive nursing care in a traditional hospital setting, the "low-acuity" facility helps create space within San Francisco's hospital system for COVID-19 patients. If and when it is needed, the facility will be ready to serve up to 93 patients.

San Francisco currently has over 7,000 patients diagnosed with COVID-19. A surge in April put 94 San Franciscans in the hospital; the number dipped to 27 six weeks ago. Today there are about 100 City residents in the hospital. One quarter of them are in intensive care.

The continuing care site in the Presidio will allow patients to receive medical care after their treatment at one of the City's hospitals or in lieu of going to a hospital. In this way, a continuing care site acts as a hospital relief valve to ensure the City keeps hospital beds available for anyone who needs acute care during and after a COVID-19 surge. If a patient's condition worsens while at the continuing care site, they will be transported by

ambulance to a hospital. The site is not expected to serve COVID-19 patients unless the course of the pandemic changes.

The new facility, located in a rehabilitated building in the northeastern corner of the Presidio, will also allow the City's hospitals to continue to address medical needs unrelated to COVID-19, such as elective surgeries. The site is part of a comprehensive strategy which also includes testing and contact tracing, with provision of food, housing and financial assistance to COVID-positive residents who need support to isolate.

Behavioral Health Services Electronic Health Record is here

Since 2016, the Behavioral Health Service (BHS) Implementation Team has been working to create a full Electronic Health Record (EHR) for the system of care. This project included the development of a scheduler in 2016, the deployment of more than 1,000 signature pads in 2017, along with the introduction of the full electronic Treatment Plan of Care, Consent for Psychiatric Medications, and Consent for Mental Health Services. The eForms component of the project started in June 2017 with the revision of each form. The forms were then reviewed by a panel of experts from the DPH Business Office of Contracts and Compliance (BOCC), Compliance Department, Billing, and Clinical Services. After the review was complete, the forms were converted to an electronic format and tested across three sites, including South of Market Mental Health, Sunset Mental Health, and Mission Mental Health. The final step, completed in February 2020, involved translating the forms into Tagalog, Russian, Chinese, Vietnamese and Spanish, at which time the translated versions were converted into a digital format and are now ready to be used system wide. An eForms user guide was recently developed and will be distributed to all BHS staff shortly. With the implementation of eForms, the BHS system of care will have full electronic patient charts, which are easy to use and will produce status reports to help maintain record updates and chart reviews electronically.

Jenée Johnson Recognized for Mindfulness Work Initiated at SFDPH

On July 21, Jenee Johnson, Program Innovation Leader at the San Francisco Department of Public Health (SFDPH) Mindfulness, Trauma and Racial Healing, was named one of twelve Powerful Woman of the Mindfulness Movement for the work she initiated in the SFDPH. Johnson continues to bring mindfulness into public health and trauma informed initiatives which supports our effort to be a healing organization with the skills to navigate complexity compassionately. With our COVID-19 cases now surging as we approach the five-month mark since we first sheltered in place in San Francisco, now more than ever, we need to take care of our physical and mental health. In Mindful's second annual focus on women leaders of mindfulness, Johnson shares how her deep practice has shaped the world she sees—and the one she's working toward: https://www.mindful.org/12-powerful-women-of-the-mindfulness-movement-2020/.

DPH in the News

SF Gate, Jul 31 2020, SF projects dire COVID figures for worst case scenario, but how accurate are they? https://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/SF-projects-dire-COVID-figures-for-worst-case-15446789.php

Vox, Jul 20 2020, San Francisco's lonely war against Covid-19

https://www.vox.com/future-perfect/2020/7/30/21331369/london-breed-coronavirus-covid-san-francisco-california-trump

KTVU, Jul 30 2020, San Francisco reports 1K jump in COVID-19 cases in 10 days https://www.ktvu.com/news/san-francisco-reports-1k-jump-in-covid-19-cases-in-10-days

SF Chronicle, Jul 30 2020, Predicting 'major surge,' SF opens site to free hospital beds for COVID-19 patients https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/Predicting-huge-surge-San-Francisco-opens-15446513.php

ABC, Jul 30 2020, San Francisco COVID-19 hospitalizations are highest ever and getting worse, health director says

https://abc7news.com/san-francisco-coronavirus-update-covid-19-hospitalizations-department-of-public-health-covid-testing/6342921/

KRON, Jul 30 2020, San Francisco building temporary hospital to free up beds for COVID patients https://www.kron4.com/news/bay-area/san-francisco-building-temporary-hospital-to-free-up-beds-for-covid-patients/

Mission Local, Jul 29 2020, Health Department, citing disproportionate ER use-of-force on Black patients, may cut ties with Sheriff's Deputies

https://missionlocal.org/2020/07/health-department-citing-disproportionate-er-use-of-force-on-black-patients-may-cut-ties-with-sheriffs-deputies/

SF Chronicle, Jul 29 2020, Cost of ignoring coronavirus rules is rising: How each Bay Area county enforces health orders

https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/Cost-of-ignoring-coronavirus-rules-is-rising-How-15441092.php

BAR, Jul 28 2020, SF supervisors send gay bathhouse rule change to mayor https://www.ebar.com/news/latest_news//295436

Bloomberg, Jul 27 2020, California AG investigating Amazon's warehouse practices amid coronavirus https://www.pe.com/2020/07/27/california-ag-investigating-amazons-warehouse-practices-amid-coronavirus/

Mission Local, Jul 27 2020, San Francisco tests for COVID-19 more than most anywhere else, but does it have a strategy?

https://missionlocal.org/2020/07/san-francisco-tests-for-covid-19-more-than-most-anywhere-else-but-does-it-have-a-strategy/

SF Chronicle, Jul 27 2020, How SF's Laguna Honda averted coronavirus disaster https://www.sfchronicle.com/bayarea/article/A-deadly-coronavirus-outbreak-seemed-inevitable-15433148.php

ABC, Jul 25 2020, Mask Up! New face covering rules take effect in San Francisco, kids now included https://abc7news.com/health/mask-up-new-face-covering-rules-take-effect-in-sf-kids-now-included/6335039/

NBC, Jul 25 2020, SF officials update face covering requirements https://www.nbcbayarea.com/news/local/san-francisco/sf-officials-update-face-covering-requirements/2332448/

ABC, Jul 24 2020, SF's updated health order requires doctor's note for those who can't wear a face covering https://abc7news.com/san-francisco-health-order-coronavirus-california-face-masks/6333612/

SF Chronicle, Jul 23 2020, Ferry Building, closed under coronavirus health orders, to reopen https://www.sfchronicle.com/food/article/Ferry-Building-closed-under-coronavirus-health-15430511.php

ABC, Jul 22 2020, Bay Area COVID-19 testing not equally accessible across races, data analysis shows https://abc7news.com/covid-19-testing-black-latino-bay-area/6330018/

SF Examiner, Jul 22 2020, SF expands testing capacity for COVID-19 as demand increases https://www.sfexaminer.com/news/sf-expands-testing-capacity-for-covid-19-as-demand-increases/

KTVU, Jul 20 2020, Indoor malls are shut down again in San Francisco, more coronavirus testing expected https://www.ktvu.com/news/indoor-malls-are-shut-down-again-in-san-francisco-more-coronavirus-testing-expected

SF Chronicle, Jul 20 2020, Bay Area's contact tracers struggle amid coronavirus surge https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/Bay-Area-s-contact-tracers-struggle-amid-15419341.php

SF Chronicle, Jul 19 2020, Open or closed? Bay Area struggles to find a middle ground that works https://www.sfchronicle.com/health/article/Open-or-closed-Bay-Area-struggles-to-find-a-15418212.php

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Bernal thanked Dr. Colfax for the report.

4) COVID-19 UPDATE

Grant Colfax, MD, DPH Director of Health, presented the item.

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Bernal stated that it is clear from reviewing the data that by November the number of cases in San Francisco may increase substantially. He added that it is important for everyone to observe all known precautions.

Commissioner Bernal also noted that many LatinX individuals are essential workers who may not have the opportunity to telecommute. Dr. Colfax stated that essential workers can get tested at CityTestSF: https://sf.gov/find-out-about-your-covid-19-testing-options. He added that the City has established pop-up testing sites in the Mission and has established culturally appropriate contact tracing and wrap-around services.

Commissioner Green asked if there is a mandate to test non-medical essential workers. She noted the importance of these staff in medical institutions. She also asked if there is a protocol for information these employees of available testing resources. Dr. Colfax stated that the Health Officer Order stipulates that individuals with symptoms and those in close contact with these individuals need to be tested within 48-hours of a request by the individuals. The DPH is working with other healthcare systems to better assess how to provide support. He noted that around the country most health systems are experiencing a dearth of testing supplies and equipment. The City is exploring pooling testing samples and using home collection for testing samples. In regard to health care systems, the City is strongly recommending that low-barrier and consistent testing is offered to employees.

Commissioner Chow requested that the number of tests completed be added to the testing maps. Dr. Colfax stated that the map shows COVID-19 testing per capita by census track. He added that mobile sites are not noted on the document. He also stated that this data indicates that the City needs to focus more of its testing resources on the southeastern neighborhoods.

Commissioner Chow asked for more information regarding the impacts of delayed test results. Dr. Colfax stated that the delays in test results are concerning because the lag time impacts the value of contact tracing efforts. The delays are primarily caused by shortages in testing components.

5) GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT

Francisco Da Costa stated that it is important for the DPH to fill its Behavioral Health Services leadership positions. They also stated it is important for the DPH to be in dialogue with the community.

6) DPH PROPOSED BUDGET

Greg Wagner, DPH Chief Operating Officer, presented the item.

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Chow thanked Mr. Wagner for the presentation. He hopes that the Mayor and Board of Supervisors will recognize the importance for the DPH to continue its important regular work in addition to its COVID-19 and racial equity activities.

Commissioner Giraudo requested that the DPH consider using a portion of the Public Safety funds that are being redirected to the DPH, be used for early intervention prevention activities for children and youth. Dr. Hali Hammer stated that there is interest in using some of the funds to boost health equity activities; the DPH is working with the Department of Children Youth and Their Families to consider how to use the funds for the greatest impact. Mr. Wagner stated that the DPH will continue to communicate with the Health Commission regarding the decision-making process for these funds.

7) MONTHLY CONTRACTS REPORT

Michelle Ruggels, Director of the SFDPH Business Office, presented the item.

Public Comment:

Francisco De Costa stated that they have been involved with the Shanti program and advised that it has been difficult for the DPH to support the most vulnerable populations in San Francisco.

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Chung stated that she is interested to learn more about the API/Wellness Center breast cancer screening. She noted that Black/African American women receive breast cancer diagnoses in later stages of the disease. She is curious about how the program attempts to address these disparities.

Action taken: The Health Commission unanimously approved the Contracts Report.

8) REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A NEW TWO-YEAR CONTRACT WITH BRIGHT HEART

HEALTH, IN THE AMOUNT OF \$232,960 (INCLUDING CONTINGENCY), TO PROVIDE TELEHEALTH ASSESSMENT SERVICES AND COVID-19 RESPONSE SERVICES FOR HOMELESS AND INDIGENT INDIVIDUALS WHO NEED BUPRENORPHINE SERVICES AND ADDICTION TREATMENT FOR SUBSTANCE USE DISORDERS.

Michelle Ruggels, Director of the SFDPH Business Office, presented the item.

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Chow asked how program participants receive prescribed medicine. Dr. Martin stated that the Behavioral Health Services (BHS) pharmacy is open and in walking distance; participants will be encouraged to access medicine at this location. The BHS pharmacists are trained in psychiatric pharmacy practices. Other participating pharmacies located in the Tenderloin will also be available to dispense medication.

Commissioner Chow, noting that participants have to go to another location to pick up medicines, suggested that the DPH consider obtaining a buprenorphine license to keep medicine onsite. Dr. Martin stated that the BHS pharmacy does have this medicine onsite.

Commissioner Green asked if telemedicine can lower barriers to access and whether going to a pharmacy will be an obstacle. Dr. Martin stated that before the COVID-19 pandemic, telehealth use was prohibited for counseling and prescriptions. However, there is now approval for the initial contact to be by phone. Primary care providers are using telemedicine to prescribe buprenorphine. She noted that the ZSFG methadone clinic is using a pop-up site in the parking lot for its most stable clients.

Commissioner Chung asked if the telehealth sessions will be conducted in sound proof rooms, noting the that privacy is very important. Dr. Martin stated that the clinics will utilize private spaces for participants to hold the telehealth sessions.

Commissioner Chung asked if naloxone will be prescribed by this program. Dr. Martin stated that harm reduction sites and pharmacies already distribute naloxone.

Commissioner Bernal stated the program is filling a critical need and wishes it much success.

Action taken: The Health Commission unanimously approved the contract.

9) ZSFG MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS AND MEDICAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS

Lisa Winston, MD, ZSFG Chief of Staff, presented the item.

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Chow stated that it is likely the ZSFG Medical Staff will bring another revision of these documents sooner than the required two years timeframe. As the ZSFG Joint Conference Committee Chair, he thanked Dr. Winston and the ZSFG Medical Staff leadership for their work on the current revisions.

Action taken: The Health Commission unanimously approved ZSFG Medical Staff Bylaws

and Regulations.

10) 2016 PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY BOND UPDATE

Mark Primeau, DPH Capital Projects, and Terry Saltz, ZSFG Capital Projects, presented the item.

Commissioner Comments:

Commissioner Chow requested information regarding the financial impact of the project delays. Mr. Primeau stated that the team will provide this analysis during the next update.

11) OTHER BUSINESS:

this item was not discussed.

12) CLOSED SESSIONS

- A) Public comment on whether to convene in closed session and all matters pertaining to the closed session.
- B) Vote on whether to hold a Closed Session (San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.11)
- C) Closed Session Pursuant to Evidence Code Sections 1156, 1156.1, 1157, 1157.5 and 1157.6, and 1157.7; Health and Safety Code Section 1461; San Francisco Administrative Code Sections 67.5, 67.8, 67.8-1, and 67.10; and California Constitution, Article I, Section 1.

CONSIDERATION OF ZUCKERBERG SAN FRANCISCO GENERAL HOSPITAL MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALING MATTERS

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION:

Discussion and vote to elect whether to disclose any portion of the closed session discussion that is not confidential under Federal or State law, The City Charter, or Non-Waivable Privilege (San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.12(a).) (Action Item)

1. Possible report on action taken in closed session (Government Code Sections 54957.1(a) and 54957.7(b) and San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.12(b).)

Action Taken: The Commission unanimously voted not to disclose information discussed in

closed session

13) ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 5:48pm.